CHATURVEDI [ SHAH ..,

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH
EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Incooned, Statemnant b beange m
sty ~antu “Statement 6t Uash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the

Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in ~efirorifvy i aid-iiart Attountng

" Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sect.on

143(10), of_the_ Act..(uw. resnonsihilitiac, "adees Hansse SStandards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We ire
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 34 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, regarding the

continuous losses incurred by the Company resulting in erosion of net-worth. As stated in the said ncte,

these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note no. 30 (iii), 31 and 32, indicazes

that a material uncertainty exists that Tlay ST SIgIcant adubt on’ thé Lompariy’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in this respect.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following notes to the accompanying standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023:

a. Note No. 31 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, which describes uncertainzy in
the matter relating to claim of the Company for compensation of loss of revenue from National
Highways Authority of India, State of Puniab and State_of Harvanaarising as. uracslt 6 Aimaersion G s

partial tiattic on development of competing road subsequent to bidding of the project which has

been referred back to Arbitration tribunal by the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi which is yet to altain
finality.

h. . Note No. 32_ta.the accovnzavinsg standalone financial statements, regarding the assessment ol the
asset’s value by the valuation expert. The valuation expert based on the assumption of receipt of the
damages/compensation claim of the Company, has determined value in use of the Company assets
as at December 31, 2022 (i.e,, valuation date) higher than the carrying value of the Asset. The value
in useso determined is critically dependent upon the receipt of claims for damages and
compensation in the pending proceedings as referred in Note no. 31 to the accompanying
standalone financial statements. As stated in the said note, the management based on the enterprise
valuation report has not considered any adjustment to the carrying value of the carriage ways in the
standalone financial statements which is critically dependent on the receipt of claims pursuarit to
the favourable order from Arbitration proceedings.

c Note No. 30 (iii) to the accompanying standalone financial statements, regarding non-provisioning
of interest on negative grant amounting to Rs. 6,032.39 Lakhs calculated up to August 25, 2020 (Rs.
T 2400\ dedvisas e NRHAwermana up o Uetdper™3 1,°2020) for such reasons as referred to in the
said note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.
Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The report
containing other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information_identified_ahave_wi¥nen it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained

in tha andit Aar athararien annanmee 20 ha oo
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, inclu ding
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that vsere
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant ta the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management of the Company is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management of the Company
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethar, tha ctondelonnfSnrnritirstatentencs 1s a
whole are’tree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repiort
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thal an
audit conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually cr in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professicnal
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, wheter
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain au dit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud r 1ay
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures taat
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Comnramyhrasdrer T oo i f1a1 controls with rétere 1ce

of such controls,

e reasonapleness of accounting estima les
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required.*o,Arraw-atesrtiron’ m-our auditofs report to
‘the rélated disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosires gnd.whathar thae sedrlaion mmticlar statements represent the underlying transact ons
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone fina
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d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) the matters described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern paragraph,

Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

f) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 7023
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standa .one
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in ‘Annexuce R,

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its managerial personnel during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
to the extent quantifiable in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note No 30
and 31 to the standalone financial statements;

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses. Refer Note No. 35 to the
standalone financial statements;

lii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Contd...6
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b)  The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Companv from anv. Jpersanls). pr.,
~<&iitity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Farty
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c)  Based on our audit procedures conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that ciuse
us to believe that the representation given by the management as menticned
above under paragraph (2) (i) (iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101720W / W100355

Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership Number: 103418

UDIN: 23103418BGXVIA3208

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT ]

In tesrnrs 61'tne ‘Annexure referred to in our report to the members of GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH
EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’) on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

i) a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property Plant and
Equipment (PPE) by which PPE are verified every three years, in accordance with this
program, the PPE were verified during the Financial year 2020-21 and no matarial
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not own any freehold
immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lpase
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) and the company does not have any
lease/sublease deed on leasehold land registered in the name of the Company.

d) According to information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) According to information, explanations and representation given to us by the management,
no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

i) a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, physical verification of the
inventories have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management having regard
to the size and nature of business of the Company and nature of its inventory, the coverage
and procedures of such verification by the management is appropriate. As explained to us
and on the basis of the records examined by us, the value of the discrepancies.naticed.nn,
"Yiy$icar veifircation’ by management did not exceed 10% or more in aggregate of each class

of inventory.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
sanctioned working capital facility in excess of Rs 5 crores from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under Paragraph
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii)  As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of ‘he
records of the Company, during the year the Company has not made any investment, or provided
any guarantee or security or has not granted any advances in the nature of loans to Companies,
Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other entities hence reguirement of provisions of
paragraph 3(iii) (a) to (f) is not applicable. @ED! a‘;.;\
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iv)  As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans, riade
investments, guarantees and security to the parties covered under section 185 of the Act. Further,

the Company is an infrastructure Company and accordingly section 186 of the Act is not applicable.
Consequently requirement of paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits and amounts which are deemed to be:Aseprodiey Wit tne meaning ot Section
"7'3°to™/6 ot the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). There

are no orders from Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bark of

India or any Court or any other Tribunal. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(v) of the Or-der
is not applicable to the Company.

vi)  To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost records has not
been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company, hence the provision of paragraph
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the company during the year has been generally regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including employee’ s:ate
insurance, provident fund, professional tax, income-tax, goods and services tax and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory cues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Company, there
are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

viii)  According to the information, explanations and representation given to us by the management,
there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the
year.

ix) al In onr. nr;ini.nrl..n.rl.d.as‘cm'dimﬁ*ﬂfhi\;"n{mmr&in:n:‘an'u'exﬁlanatlons given to us and on the
basis of examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender except the following instance:

Nature of | Name of the | Amount not | Whether | No. of days | Remarks
Borrowing | Lender paid on due | Principal | delay / unpaid

dates or

(Rupees in | Interest

Lakhs)
Rupee Bank of 284.90 | Principal | Delay ranging | Quarterly
Term Loan | Maharashtra from 83 days to | instalments

87 days

Contd... 3
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Nature of | Name of the Amount not | Whether | No. of days | Remarks
Borrowing | Lender paid on due | Principal delay / unpaid
dates or
(Rupees in | Interest
Lakhs)
Rupee Central Bank 764.50 | Principal | Delay ranging | Quarterly
Term Loan | of India from 83 days to | instalments
87 days
Rupee Punjab 722.25 | Principal Delay  ranging | Quarterly
Term Loan | National Bank from 83 days to | instalmerits
87 days
Rupee State Bank of 787.07 | Principal | Delay ranging | Quarterly
Term Loan | India from 83 days to | instalmer.ts
87 days
Rupee Union Bank of 173.97 | Principal | Delay ranging | Quarterly
Term Loan | India from 83 days to | instalments
87 days
Rupee Bank of 115.97 | Principal | Unpaid
Term Loan | Maharashtra
Rupee Central Bank 308.76 | Principal | Unpaid
Term Loan | of India
Rupee Punjab 290.75 | Principal | Unpaid
Term Loan | National Bank
Rupee State Bank of 316.97 | Principal | Unpaid
Term Loan | India
Rupee Union Bank of 57.99 | Principal | Unpaid
Term Loan | India
Rupee Bank of 207.63 | Interest Delay ranging
Term Loan | Maharashtra from 83 days to
89 days
Rupee Central Bank 570.54 | Interest Delay ranging
Term Loan | of India from 83 days to
89 days
Rupee Punjab 530.91 | Interest Delay ranging
Term Loan | National Bank from 58 days to
— e ey 89 davase
| | | | [
Contd... 4
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"Nature of Name of the | Amount not | Whether | No. of days | Remark;
l Borrowing | Lender paid on due | Principal | delay / unpaid
' dates or |
‘ (Rupees in | Interest
| L | Lakhs) N ]
Rupee State Bank of 627.34 | Interest Delay  ranging
| Term Loan | India from 83 days to
' ‘ 89 days
| —
.' Rupee Union Bank ofi 113.41 | Interest Delay  ranging
| Term Loan | India | from 60 days to
| | 89 days
o |
h{upee Bank of | 63.31 | Interest Unpaid
i Term Loan | Maharashtra i
i Rupee ‘ Central Bank | 178.13 | Interest Unpaid T
' Term Loan | of India |
?_Rupee Punjab . 162.51 | Interest Unpaid
| Term Loan National Bank |
| Rupee State Bank ofI 185.72 | Interest Unpaid
| Term Loan | India .
_!T?upee Union Bank of 17.31 | Interest Unpaid
| Term Loan | India

In our opinion, and according to the information, explanations and representation giver to
us, the Company has not been declared willfu] defaulter by any bank or financial institution
orgovernment or any government authority,

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order
is notapplicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, and on rthe
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised = ny
fresh short-term funds during the year hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Oriler
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and on ‘he
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, we report that the Company has ot
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Continuation : hest...



&
CHATURVEDI 1 SHAH ..-

Chartered Accountants

=)
- -

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that the Company has not raised 1oans

during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the hasis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not raise money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments), hence requireraent
of paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has ne* ~-~4- -~ = T
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b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, and on the

basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not conductec. any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per the Reserve hank
of India Act 1934.

) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India.

d) As represented by the management, the Group has two Core Investment Companies (CICs)
as part of the Group as per the definition of. (rruwy. rontainad, n. Hhie “oure "ravestment
‘Compariles (Keserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

xvii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has

incurred cash losses during the immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 3,733.16
Lakhs.

xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XiX)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our review of the evidence supporting the assumptions, there is a
existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern as on the date of the audit report and the capability of the company for
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date is dependent on the assurance of the Holding Company to
provide necessary financial and other assistance for running its operations as referred to in Note No
34 to the accompanying standalone financial statements (Refer Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern Section of our report). We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balasane'sirdec darte, Wi get'discharged by the

company as and when they fall due.

xx)  The Company is not liable to spend on Corporate Social responsibility for the year under audit in
terms of the section 135 of the Act, hence reporting requirement under Paragraph 3 (xx) (@) and (b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Contd... 7
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In our opinion, Company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statement under sub

section 3 of section 129 of the Act, hence, reporting requirement under Paragraph 3 (xxi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

LalitR M-l-l-;lsekar
Partner
Membership Number: 103418

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls w=*% —~fr=r=rotr ~ton dolomn S it et renrete e

AUUIUL S l'\l':apuilalulllt}’

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to

standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

recugjnernanis e nd. olpnoaend . opdoionotha o ndib e siaurasanablea, o savanan o hvu i hatbaid - adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing; the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgnmient,
nrlvalingg thac assesmnaat b thre mishis "§onngeeitdonitsstacement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements.

Contd... 2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepited
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records tha:, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements raay
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material resnects. an adeayates internarinanéial controls with réference to standalone financial
statement and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statement were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
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GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Note March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lakhs
March 31, 2022

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

2 41.67 48.27
Other intangible assets 3 28,077.37 32,112.27
Right of use assets 4 31.42 z
Financial Assets
Other financial assets 5 24.13 22.60
Income tax assets (net) 7 4,79 18.72
Total Non-Current Assets 28,179.38 32,101.86
Current Assets
Inventories 8 64.84 72.50
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 240.66 124,52
Other financial assets 5 28.46 45.02
Other current assets 6 76.97 154.60
Total Current Assets 410.93 396.64
TOTAL ASSETS 28,590.31 32,698.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 10 9,823.80 9,623.80
Other equity 11 (35,365.59) (46,292.51)
Total Equity (25,541.79) (36,558.71)
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Non Current borrowings 12 26,253.85 24,516.57
Lease Liabilities 13 21.64 -
Other financial liabilities 16 3,582.41 -
Provisions 14 16.84 838.64
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 . -
Total Non-current Liabilities 29,874.74 25,435.21
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Current borrowings 12 8,841.65 31,61)9.00
Lease Liabilities 13 9.75 -
Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 156.56 306.15
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (a) above 15 544.06 816.18
Other financial liabilities 16 10,818.53 7,755.46
Other current liabilities 17 97.47 731.93
Provisions 14 3,789.34 2,543.28
Total Current Liabilities 24,257.36 43,8:2.00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 28,590.31 32,6¢8.50
Significant accounting policies 1 - -
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these IND AS financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355 ') 3
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Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership No.: 103418

Date : April 27, 2023
Place : Mumbai

(o] B‘angaru Raju
Director
DIN: 00082228

@ \V"&\,\'\’U/ :

Mudit Saxena

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.075064
Date : April 27, 2023
Place : New Delhi

Arun Kumar Sharma

Director
DIN: 02251905
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Divya Kalra

Company Secietary
ership No. ACS 70871



GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

. Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 7,149.97 1,895.08
Other income 20 21.75 16.46
Total Income 7,171.72 1,911.54
EXPENSES
Operating expenses 21 1,500.02 1,655.37
Employee benefits expense 22 151.35 199.10
Finance costs 23 5,126.73 5,600.85
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 4,150.10 1,618.38
Other expenses 25 740.16 671.18
Total Expenses 11,668.36 10),744.88
Loss for the year before exceptional items and tax (4,496.64) (4,833.34)
Exceptional items (Loss)/ Gain 26 870.50 -
Loss for the year before taxation (3,626.14) £,833.34)
Tax Expense:
Current tax 5 g
Deferred tax expense (credit) - =
Loss for the year after tax (3,626.14) (4,833.34)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 7.02 (0.36)
Income tax effect = -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 7.02 (0.36)
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,619.12) (£.833.70)
Earnings per equity share: (face value of equity shares of Rs.10 each)

Basic 27 (3.69) (8.99)

Diluted 27 (3.69) (8.99)
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these IND AS financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
Chartered Accountants Py
Firm-Registration Number : 101720W / W100355 it
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Lalit R Mhalsekar O Bangaru Raju Ar mar Sharma
Partner Director [irector
Membership No.: 103418 DIN: 00082228 DIN: 022281905

Date : April 27, 2023
Place : Mumbai

‘Mudit Saxena

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.075064

Date : April 27, 2023
Place : New Delhi

g
Divya Kalra
Company Se:cretary
Membership No. AC 70871



GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss for the year

(3,626.14) (8.833.34)
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and amortisation 4,150.10 151838
Interest and finance charges 5,126.73 6; 500.85
Major maintenance expenses 886.70 791.22
Exceptional (Gain)/Loss (870.50) -
Loss / (profit) on sale of property plant and equipment 0.57 -
Reameasurements of defined benefit plans 7.02 (0.36)
Interest income on bank deposit and others (0.04) (0.06)
Interest on Income Tax Refund (0.89) (0.25)
Balances written off 55.00 -
Excess provision/ liabilities written back (11.81) -
5,716.74 .76.44
Adjustments for Movement in Working Capital:
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets and loans 14.46 (8.55)
Decrease / (increase) in other assets 22.63 4.44
Decrease / (increase) in Inventories 7.66 (5.89)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables (489.90) 100.23
Increase / (decrease) in financial liabilities 6,162.33 3,684.97
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 236.04 £13.34
Increase / (decrease) in Provision (1,581.07) (181.11)
Cash From/(used In) Operating activities 10,088.89 4,183.87
Tax (paid)/refund 14.82 14.47)
Net Cash From/(used In) Operating activities 10,103.71 4,169.40
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8.35) 116.81)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 1.99 -
Interest Income on bank deposit - 0.07
Decrease/(increase) in Other Bank Balance - 1.51
Cash From/(used In) Investing Activities (6.36) (15.23)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of term loan from banks (3,621.66) (1,436.47)
Payment of Negative Grant (3,569.75) -
Payment of Lease Liabilities (3.15) -
Interest and finance charges paid to others (2,770.24) (2,519.24)
Interest paid to related parties (16.41) (11)8.60)
Cash From/(used In) Financing Activities (9,981.21) (4,054.31)
D Netincrease / decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] 116.14 139.86
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the year 124.52 34.66
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the year 240.66 14.52
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash in hand 22.45 +3.95
Balances with banks
- Current account 218.21 1.0.57
Total 240.66 1:!4.52
Notes :

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method’

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statement of Cash Flows as referrec to in

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Opening balance Cash flows Principalisation ~ Non-cash / fair Closing Balance
of interest on value changes/
borrowin;s Others

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Liability portion of preference shares* 14,520.33 - - (14,520.33) -
External borrowings 23,199.16 (3,621.66) - 13.54 19,591.04
Liability portion of Loan from related parties 5,973.57 - - 638.13 6,6..1.70
Borrowing from related parties 6,429.91 - - - 6,49.91
Negative government grant e 6,032.60 (3,569.75) - - 2,452.85
Lease Liabilities PG : (3.15) 34.54 31.39
Interest accrued 1 5 L 3,760.83 (2,786.65) 269.80 4,243.98

*[Refer Note No.10(c) ]




GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

2 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Opening balance Cash flows Principalisation ~ Non-cash / fair Closing Bilance
of interest on value changes
borrowings

For the year ended March 31,2022
Liability portion of preference shares 13,118.90 - - 1,401.43 14,520.33
External borrowings 24,645.13 (1,436.47) (24.96) 15.46 23,199.16
Liability portion of Loan from related parties 5,397.03 - - 576.54 5.973.57
Borrowing from related parties 6,429.91 - - - €429.91
Negative government grant 6,032.60 - - - € 032.60
Interest accrued 2,839.60 (2,627.84) 24.96 3,524.11 3 760.83

3 The previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these IND AS financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firrm,Registration Number : 101720W / W100355
f?z i (e~
Lalit RVMRalsekar
Partner

Membership No.: 103418

Date : April 27, 2023
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited

A

1]
A

O Ban Raju
Director
DIN: 00082228

:‘@‘i\“”
Mudit Saxena
Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.075064

Date : April 27, 2023
Place : New Delhi

Arun Kumar $harma
Cirector
DIN: 02281905

Doy

Divyi Kalra
Company Serretary

Membership No. ACS 70871



GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTCO36 773

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
A. Equity Share Capital

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 10 9,823.80 1,823.80
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 5 =
Restated balance at beginning of the year 9,823.80 4,823.80
Changes in equity share capital during the year - "
Balance at the end of the year 10 9,823.80 4,823.80
B. Other Equity
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Equity component of financial 8% Non- Retained Other Total [Refer Note
instruments Cumulative earnings  comprehensi No.l1]
Preference  Related party ~ Compulsorily ve income
shares loans Convertible
Preference
shares[Refer
Note No.10(c) ]
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
Balance as at April 1, 2021 10,019.69 6,738.59 - (54,314.61) (2.48) {37,558.81)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - = -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2021 10,019.69 6,738.59 - (54,314.61) (2.48) (37,558.81)
Loss for the year - - - (8,833.34) - (8.833.34)
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans B - - - (0.36) (0.36)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 10,019.69 6,738.59 - (63,147.95) (2.84) (46,392.51)
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2023
Balance as at April 1, 2022 10,019.69 6,738.59 - (63,147.95) (2.84) (46,392.51)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - . - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 10,019.69 6,738.59 g (63,147.95) (2.84) (46,192.51)
Loss for the year - - (3,626.14) - (3,1526.14)
Conversion of Redeemable Preference Shares into - - 14,646.04 - - 14,646.04
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans - - - - 7.02 7.02
Balance as at March 31, 2023 10,019.69 6,738.59 14,646.04  (66,774.09) 4.18 (35,765.59)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these IND AS financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm-Registration Number : 101720wW / W100355 (; -
oA rene . pooe
Lalit R Mhalsekar O Bangaru Raju Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner Director C rector
Membership No.: 103418 DIN: 0008228 DIN: 02281905
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S
Mudit Saxena
Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.075064
Date : April 27, 2023
Place : New Delhi

Date : April 27, 2023
Place : Mumbai

=
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Company Secretary
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GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

1.1 Company Overview

GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (the Company) is incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 25/1, SKIP
House, Museum Road, Bangalore, Karnataka-560025. The Company has principal place of business at Chandigarh, Punjab. The company has
registered itself as Medium enterprise under Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006

The Company engaged in development of highways on build, operate and transfer model on toll basis. This entity is a Special purpose Vehicle \which
has entered into a Concession Agreement with National Highways Authority of India for carrying out the project of Design, Construction,
Development, Improvement, Operation and Maintenance including strengthening and widening of Ambala — Chandigarh section on National Higaway
21 and 22 in the states of Punjab and Haryana on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis.

The Company's Holding Company is GMR Highways Limited while ultimate Holding Company is GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note
No.1.2(i)]".

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Eoard
of Directors on April 27, 2023. '

1.2 Composite Scheme of Ama lgamation:

The composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement for amalgamation of GMR Power Infra Limited ('GPIL') with the GMR Infrastructure Lirited
(‘GIL') and demerger of Engineering Procurement and Construction ('EPC') business and Urban Infrastructure Business of GIL (including Energy
business) into GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited ('GPUIL') (“The Scheme”) was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Muinbai
Bench (“the Tribunal”) vide its order dated December 22, 2021 (formal order recejved on December 24, 2021). The said Tribunal order was filed to
the Registrar of Companies by GIL, GPIL and GPUIL on December 31, 2021 thereby making the Scheme effective. After the scheme becoming effective,

Pursuant to the Scheme as referred above, the following impact has been given in the financial statements of the Company:

(i} The Equity Shares, Preference Shares held by GIL has been transferred to GPUIL in terms of the Demerger. The equity shares with depository is
still appearing in the name of GIL, due to pledge with Banks for Rupee Term Loan in respect of which the Company is in the process of getting the
same transferred. Pending such transfer with depository, GPUIL is considered as the holder of shares for the purposes of disclosure in the
financial statements in terms of the Demerger Scheme.

(i) The unsecured loans availed from GIL has been transferred to GPUIL

(iii) All payables to GIL / receivables from GIL (pertaining to EPC division) shall be payable to GPUIL / receivables from GPUIL, except for payible
towards Corporate Cost Sharing, up to December 31, 2021.

1.3 Basis of preparation ;
The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (to the extent
notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an exis ting
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The audited Financial are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/Rupees in Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.
1.4 Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting polizies
have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.
Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non—current based upon the requirements of Schedul: |
notified under the Companies Act, 2013.
An asset has been classified as current if
(a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; or
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or
(c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after “he
reporting date. All other assets have been classified as non-current.

a) Current versus non-current classification
A liability has been classified as current when
(a) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; or
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:; or
(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. All
other liabilities have been classified as non—current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The compzny
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

&%




GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC0O36773

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

1.4 significant accounting policies
b) Foreign currency and derivative tra nsactions
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is company'’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchan

ge rate prevailing on the date of the respective transactions between the func:ional
currency and the foreign currency.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rates of exchange prev

on that date. Gains / losses arising on account of realisation / settlement of foreign currency transactions and on translation of foreign cur
assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ailing
"ency

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which
they arise.

Non— monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate it the

date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are
reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or lcss on

the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

(a) Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are accounted for in the Statement of
Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as the case may be, except those relating to long-term foreign
currency monetary items.

{b) Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or before 31 March 2016:

Exchange differences on long-term foreign currency manetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the carrying cost
of the assets and depreciated over the balance life of the assets. In other cases, exchange differences are accumulated in a "Foreign Currancy
Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance period of such long-term foreign currency monetary itern by
recognition as income or expense in each of such periods.

Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 2016:
The exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency working capital loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 20..6 is
charged off or credited to profit & loss account under Ind AS.
c) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participarts at

the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

i} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liab lity,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierar:hy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) %

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vilue
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

B




GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

1.4 Significant accounting policies
d) Revenue Recognition
Revenue from operations:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Con'pany
has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Toll Revenue is recognised on usage of public service on accrual basis. Claims raised on NHAI under concession agreement are accounted ‘or in
the year of acceptance.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the
products or services and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised
products or services to customers. To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach: (1) identify the contract with a
customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price ti the
performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

The revenue is recognised when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied, which typically occurs when (or as) control over the products or
services is transferred to a customer,

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The
accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the
pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those that
are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, oras
a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Interest income and other income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effertive
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

On disposal of current investments, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the staternent
of profit and loss. Such income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.
Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date.

e) Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment. Such cost includes the zost
of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them separately based on teir
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment asa
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of tangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derec‘ognized‘

Further, When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment is a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of PPE and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized as fixed assets.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more than a period of 12
months.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset (net of residual value), in accordance with the useful | ves
prescribed under Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 which are as below:

Asset Type Estimated useful Life (In Years)
Plant and equipment 4-15 years
Office equipment : ; 3 5 years
Furniture and fixtures : v 10 years
Vehicles R 8-10 years

Computers 3 years




GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

1.4 significant accounting policies
e) Property, Plant & Equipment

Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on assets sold/disposad off
during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off. Modification or extension to an existing asset, which
is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life of that asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year eni and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in an amalgamation in the
nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cos: less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treatid as

il

changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit anc loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds anc the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Carriageways is being amortised over concession period on proportionate revenue method. Computer software is being amortized over a period
of 6 years on a straight line basis.
The above periods also represent the management estimated economic useful life of the respective intangible assets.

g) Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The: tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. The tax rates anc tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Managerent

and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax los ses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 1hat
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income ¢- in
equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing ccsts
directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occuir.

i) Inventories
Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on First In First Out basis.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. @~ % ¥
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1.4 significant accounting policies
j) Lease
Finance Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee
The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract involves—
(a) the use of an identified asset,
(b) the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and
(c) the right to direct the use of the identified asset.
The Company at the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and corresponding lease liability, except for
leases with term of less than twelve manths (short term) and low-value assets.
Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and ease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of |ease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership o’ the
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter ¢f its
estimated useful life and the lease term, Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may nct be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use)
is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other as;ets.
In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be n'ade
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivible,

terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Lease payments have been classified as cash used in Financing activities.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of building, machinery and equipment (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment and building that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating Leases:

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all “he
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classif ed

as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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1.4 Significant accounting policies
k) Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when

annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use, The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre—tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. |n determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the
company's cash Benerating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a
period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously revalued tangible PPE, where

the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case, the impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to the amout of
any previous revaluation.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no lcnger
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recogrized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in arior
years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the rever:al is
treated as a revaluation increase,

) Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments
Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non—occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements, Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flowy to
the entity.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable thal an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Company's expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provisicn is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

m) Retirement and other Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans.
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits
such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the rela:ed
service.
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribut on
payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payaale
to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. if the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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1.4 Significant accounting policies
m) Retirement and other Employee Benefits
Compensated absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months,

measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
accumulated at the reporting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measureinent
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the leave
as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months afte- the

reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months. the
same is presented as non-current liability.

is treated as short-term employee benefit. The company
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providin

g benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation uider
projected unit credit (PUC) method.

pense when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are measured

at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market * yields at the balance sheet date on government
bonds.

Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
> The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
> The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

n) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of anolher
entity.
i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or |2ss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are only classified as Debt instruments at amortised cost.
Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the IIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or luss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company's of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the balance sheet) when:
> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
> The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of |he
company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associaled
liability are measured on-a basis thatreflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement tl%(kes th.é_form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
the asset and the maximum amount'of consideration that the company could be required to repay.
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1.4 significant accounting policies
n) Financial Instruments
i) Financial assets
Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss ¢n the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and ar
balance
b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

€ measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables anc bank

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for

recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment
loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairmen! loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

it recognises impairmenl loss

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to
consider:

> All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the
financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

> Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss

(P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

> Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those asse:s in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not recluce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as
appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc.
Subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ZIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits received.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, sch
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

o) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original matu -ity
periods of three months or less.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. -
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1.4 significant accounting policies
p) Earnings per share
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted avzrage
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders ani the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
q) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash niture,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipt or payments and item of income or expense associated with investing or
financing cash-flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
1.5 Key accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affec: the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affectied in
future periods.
The estimate and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the perind in
which are estimate is revised and future periods affected.
Significant judgements and the estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities, provision for employee benefits and olhers
provisions, commitments and contingencies and fair value measurements of investments.
i) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions :

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant ritk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company tased
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions aJout
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. 5uch
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
a) Income tax
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements inc ude
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. Refer note no.28 for further disclosures.
c) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and contractual
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessmert of
the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events. [Refer note no.30 & 31]
d) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determinazion
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term naturs, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at the interval in respanse
to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India.
1.5 Key accounting estimates and judgments

i) Significant judgements :

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from those involving

estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

a) Impairment of Intangible Assets:

The Company has received Order from the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi setting aside the Arbitral Award as detailed in Note No. 31. In view of the
same and based on the legal opinions and its assessment is of the view that the said claims would be upheld either by Arbitral Tribunal or Delhi

High Court and the ¢laim amount will be received by the Company in the ensuing years. The probability of receipt of these amounts hqve been
considered in cash flows for-the purpose of impairement testing by expert valuer.
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1.5 Key accounting estimates and judgments
ii) Significant judgements :
b) Amortisation:

Intangible Asset arising on service concession arrangement is being amortised on proportionate revenue method. To apply the said method of
amortisation, future revenue has been estimated by the Management. The amortisation is based on the revenue projections without considering
the revenue impact of Change in Law claims made by the Company for amortisation.

1.6 Introduction of new standards and amendments to existing standards issued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendent
Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements -

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies and include
corresponding amendments to IND AS 107 and IND AS 34. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning ¢n or
after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

- Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes
in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning ¢n or
after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements,

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes -

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences. Also there is corresponding amendment to IND AS 101. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement,

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 Property, plant and equipment

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Plant and machinery Computers Office Equipments Vehicles Furniture and Tatal
| Fixtures
Gross block
As a;l: April 01, 2021 17.25 11.02 29.26 36.82 217 96.52
Additions 14.31 - 2.50 = - 16.81
Disppsals / Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 31.56 11.02 31.76 36.82 2.17 113.33
Additions = - 7.86 B 0.49 8.35
Disposals / Adjustments (16.73) - - - - {16.73)
As a1; March 31, 2023 14.83 11.02 39.62 36.82 2.66 104.95
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2021 12.02 9.45 13.96 13.85 1.89 51.17
Charge for the year 2.05 1.45 5.86 4.48 0.05 13.89
Disposals / Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 14.07 10.90 19.82 18.33 1.94 65.06
Charge for the year 1.54 0.03 6.30 4.48 0.04 12.39
Disposals / Adjustments (14.17) - - - - (14.17)
As at March 31, 2023 1.44 10.93 26.12 22.81 1.98 63.28
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 17.49 0.12 11.94 18.49 0.23 48.27
As at March 31, 2023 13.39 0.09 13.50 14.01 0.68 41.67
Notes:

1 Deemed Cost: The Company during the Financial Year 2016-17, had fir
Comﬁanies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accou
Company had elected to use its previous GAAP carrying value as at A
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 1

st time adopted Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') under section 137 of the
nting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafier. The
pril 01, 2015 being the opening balance sheet date for the purpose of first time
01, 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards'. Accordingly the value of

grossiblock disclosed above includes carrying value of assets at the transition date (i.e., April 01, 2015) which is considered as deemed cost.

2 Assets are owned and are used for own use, unless otherwise mentioned.
3 For charges created on property, plant and equipments refer note no.12

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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3 Other Intangible Assets

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Carriageways Software Tot:l

Gross block
As at April 01, 2021 52,555.62 68.23 51,623.85
Additions = . g
Disposals / Adjustments - A -
As at March 31, 2022 52,555.62 68.23 51,623.85
Additions = = i
Disposals / Adjustments 2 - S
As at March 31, 2023 52,555.62 68.23 51,623.85

Depreciation
As at April 01, 2021 18,739.04 68.05 14,807.09
Charge for the year 1,604.33 0.16 1,604.49
Disposals / Adjustments z < A
As at March 31, 2022 20,343.37 68.21 20,411.58
Charge for the year 4,134.90 - 4,134.90
Disposals / Adjustments - - =
As at March 31, 2023 24,478.27 68.21 24,546.48

Net block
As at March 31, 2022 32,212.25 0.02 32 212.27
As at March 31, 2023 28,077.35 0.02 28 077.37

Notes:

had first time adopted Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') under section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued therealter. The

s at April 01, 2015 being the opening balance sheet date for the purpose of first time

adoption of Indian Accounting Standards as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101, 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards'. Accordingly the value of

gross block disclosed above includes carrying value of assets at the transition dat

2 For charges created on Intangible assets refer note no.12

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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4 Right of use Assets

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Leashold Buildings Total

Gross block

As at April 01, 2021
Additions
Disposals / Adjustments

As at March 31, 2022

Additions
Disposals / Adjustments

As at March 31, 2023

Depreciation

As at April 01, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals / Adjustments

As at March 31, 2022

Charge for the year
Disposals / Adjustments

As at March 31, 2023 2.81

Net block
As at March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2023 31.42

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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5 Other financial assets

Rupees i1 Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non-current:
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good

Deposit with Government Departments and others 24.13 22.60
Sub Total (A) 24.13 22.60
Current:
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits — considered good - unsecured

with others 0.70 2.40
Receivable from NHAI 6.22 42.62
Receivable from toll customers 21.54 -
Sub Total (B) 28.46 45.02
Total (A)+(B) 52.59 67.62
Note :-
i) The fair value of other financial assets are not materially different from the carrying value presented.

6 Other assets

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 11022

Current:

Unsecured, considered good

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
- Advance to suppliers

2.54 57.98
- Advance to employees for expenses 2l 0.34
Prepaid expenses 66.86 77.14
Balances with government authorities 4.86 19.14
Total 76.97 154.60
Note :-
i) For charges created on current assets refer note no.12
7 Income tax assets (net)
Rupees in |.akhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current:
Advance income tax and tax deducted at source (net) 4.79 18.72
Total 4.79 18.72
8 Inventories
Rupees in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Stores and spares [Refer note (b) below] 64.84 12.50
Total 64.84 112.50
Notes:
a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
b) For charges created on inventories refer note no,12.
9 Cash and cash equivalents
Rupees in l.akhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 21)22
Cash in hand 22.45 13.95
Balances with banks i
- Current account 218.21 110.57
Total 240.66 1:.4.52
Note:

a) For charges created on cash and_bank balances refer note no.12.
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10 Equity share capital

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised
9,85,00,000 [March 31, 2022 : 9,85,00,000] equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,850.00 9,450.00
1,46,50,000 [March 31, 2022 : 1,46,50,000] preference shares of Rs.100 each 14,650.00 14,4550.00

24,500.00 24,500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
9,82,38,000 [March 31, 2022 : 9,82,38,000] equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,823.80 9,i23.80
Total 9,823.80 9,i23.80
Notes:
(a)  Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year
Name of Shareholder Numbers Rupees in Liikhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,82,38,000 9,623.80
Shares issued during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 9,82,38,000 9,623.80
March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,82,38,000 9,823.80
Shares issued during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 9,82,38,000 9,823.80
Preference shares of Rs. 100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) |
March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,46,46,040 14,616.04
Shares issued during the year = =
Balance at the end of the year 1,46,46,040 14,6:16.04
March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,46,46,040 14,6:6.04
Shares issued during the year = =
Balance at the end of the year 1,46,46,040 14,6:6.04

(b) Terms to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per sharis. The
Company declares and pay dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of director, if any, is subject to the approval of the

shareholder in ensuing Annual General meeting.

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of

all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The entire equity shares of the company held by GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL)/ GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL) [Refer Note No.1 2(i)1,

GMR Energy Limited (GEL) and GMR Highways Limited ( GHWL ) respectively have been pledged with banks against term loan.
(c) Terms of Preference shares of Rs.100 each

8% (Tax-free) preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up are redeemable, non-cumulative and non-convertible, Preference Shares are redeemable
at par on May 1, 2022. However, the preference shareholders reserve the right to call for buy-out of the Preference shares by the promoters of the
issuer Company or redemption of the preference shares by the company at any time after the expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment by giving

one month notice.

During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved the variation of rights, with the consent of Preference and Equity Sharehalders,
associated with the preference shares of the Company from 8% (Tax-free) Redeemable Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Preference shares to 8% (Tax-
free) Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) to be converted on or before August 31, 2027 at a ratio of 1:10. These CCFS has

been disclosed as instruments entirely equity in nature,

These preference shares are fully subordinated to all amounts payable by issuer to the consortium lenders. Refer note nos.11 and 12 for equity and

liabilities portion of Preference Shares.

o
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(d)  Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder

Numbers % of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
March 31, 2023
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 51.65%
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note No.1.2(i)] 2,32,72,687 23.69%
* GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 24.66%
March 31, 2022
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 51.65%
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note No.1.2(i)] 2,32,72,687 23.69%
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 24.66%
Preference shares of Rs.100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) |
March 31, 2023
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited [Refer Note No.10(i)] - 0.00%
GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited [Refer Note No.10(i)] - 0.00%
GMR Highways Limited [Refer Note No.10(i)] 1,45,80,040 39.55%
March 31, 2022 ;
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited 68,48,900 16.76%
GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited 76,51,140 52.24%
GMR Highways Limited 80,000 0.55%
(e)  Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Name of Shareholder Numbers Rupees in Lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
March 31, 2023
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 2,422.26
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 5,074.27
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note No.1.2(i}] 2,32,72,687 2,227.27
March 31, 2022
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 2,422.26
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 5,074.27
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note No.1.2(i)]. 2,32,72,687 2,327.27
Preference shares of Rs.100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) ]
March 31, 2023
GMR Highways Limited [Refer Note No.10(i)] 1,45,80,040 14,530.04
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited [Refer Note No.10(i)] - -
GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited [Refer Note No.10(i)] - »
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note No.1.2(i)]. 66,000 156.00
March 31, 2022
GMR Highways Limited 80,000 $0.00
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited 68,48,900 6,8:18.90
GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited 76,51,140 7,601.14
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note No.1.2(i)]. 66,000 4%6.00

(f) Shares in the Company held by Promoters at the end of the year:

Nanie of Shiaveholder March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 % Change during the
No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding year

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 24.66% 2,42,22,593 24.66% 0.00%

GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 51.65% 5,07,42,720 51.65% 0.00%

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [Refer Note  2,32,72,687 23.69% 2,32,72,687 23.69% 0.00%

No.1.2(i)]

Preference shares of Rs.100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) |

GMR Highways Limited [Refer Note No.10(i)] 1,45,80,040 99.55% 80,000 0.55% 18125.05%;

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited - 0.00% 68,48,900 46.76% 100.00%

[Refer Note No.10(i)]

GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited [Refer - 0.00% 76,51,140

Note No.10(i)] i

GMR Power and Urban In%r/nited [Refer Note 66,000 0.45% 66,000

No.1.2(i)].
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1

-

(8)  As perrecords of the Company including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations rec

beneficial interest, the above share holding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares [Refer Note No.1.2(i)].

(h)  The Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash, durin

(i) The Preference Shares held by GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL) and GMR Tambaram Tindiv

and borrowings and other amount payable to GTAEL and GTTEL has been transferred to GMR Hi
GTAEL and GTTEL with GHWL as per scheme approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law T
from April 01, 2019 vide its order dated August 03, 2022.

Other equity

eived from share holders regarding

g the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

anam Expressways Limited (GTTEL)
ghways Limited (GHWL) in terms of the marger of
ribunal, Mumbai Bench (“the Tribunal”) effective

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity component of Preference shares
Opening balance 10,019.69 10,019.69
Add: Adjustment for the year - -
Closing balance 10,019.69 10,(:19.69
Equity component of loan from related parties
Opening balance 6,738.59 6,738.59
Add: Adjustment for the year - =
Closing balance 6,738.59 6,738.59
Instruments Classified as Equity
8% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference [Refer Note No.10]
Opening balance - -
Add: Addition during the year [Refer Note No.10(c) ] 14,646.04 -
Closing balance 14,646.04 -
Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss - =
Opening balance (63,147.95) (54,314.61)
Add: Loss for the year (3,626.14) (8,833.34)
Closing balance (66,774.09) (63,1.17.95)
Other comprehensive income z =
Opening balance (2.84) (2.48)
Remeasurements gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans, net of tax effect 7.02 (0.36)
Closing balance 4.18 (2.84)
Total (35,365.59) (46,312.51)

Nature and purpose of reserve:
a) Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the requirements of the Companies Act,

2013. No dividends are distributed by the Company.

b) Equity component of related party transactions

Equity Component of Related Party Transactions represents the difference in carrying value and fair value of Preference Shares issued to and loans taken
from its holding company, fellow subsidiary and associates on initial recognition. Fair value is determined by discounting the estimating the cash flows
expected over the term of the instrument using an applicable discount rate. The equity component of related party transactions are adjusted lo the

carrying amount on account of extinguishment of liability.

¢} Other Comprehensive Income : represents Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans and its Income Tax Effects.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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12 Borrowings

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non Current borrowings:
Secured, at amortized cost
Loan from banks [Refer note (a) below] 13,478.77 18.573.00
Unsecured, at amortized cost
Liability component of compound financial instruments
Liability portion of loan from related parties [Refer note nos.42 and (c) below] 6,611.70 5,373.57
Unsecured, at amortized cost
Loans from related parties [Refer note nos.42 and (d) below] 6,163.38 -
Total of Non Current borrowings (A) 26,253.85 24,546.57
Current borrowings
Unsecured, at amortized cost
Liability portion of preference shares issued to related parties [Refer note nos.42 and (b) below] - 14,520.33
Current maturities of Non Current loan [Refer note (a) below] 6,112.27 4,526.16
Loans from related parties [Refer note nos.42 and (d) below] 266.53 6,429.91
Unsecured, at amortized cost
Liability component of compound financial instruments
Negative government grants [Refer note no.31 and (e) below] 2,462.85 6,032.60
Total of Current borrowings (B) 8,841.65 31,(09.00
Total (A)+(B) 35,095.50 56,155.57

Notes:

(a)  Terms of rupee term loan from bank:

During the financial year 2015-16, term loan has been restructured, restructuring document was signed on October 05, 2015, As per revised terms,
Indian rupee loan carries interest @ base rate plus spread, fixed @ 11.15% payable on monthly rests. Interest rate/spread shall be reset yeary. The
company has also agreed to pay an additional interest of 0.60% pa on the outstanding term loan from August 2010 onwards if the claim submiited by
the company is awarded in its favour during the Legal proceedings.

Further during the financial year 2020-21 in terms of COVID-19 - Regulatory Package (Revised) of Reserve Bank India (RBI), interest accrued during the
period March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020 has been converted into term loan. The lenders have issued revised repayment schedule considering the
conversion of interest accrued during moratorium period into term loan and the confirmations have been received through email communication and in
some cases authenticated documents. The Company has classified the current and non current liabilities based on the best available inforrnation
through various modes. The loan was repayable in 42 unequal quarterly installments as per the restructured terms referred above, now the repzyment
terms varies from 44 unequal quarterly installments (last installment due on March 31, 2026} based on the information available as abovi. The
Management is of the opinion that the said repayment schedules considered are good as per the information available with the Company and wo. Id not
be subject to change.

The Interest rate presently varies from 11.15% to 13.10% on monthly rests.

Terms of Security

The loan is now secured

i) by way of pari passu first charge over company's immovable properties & movable properties, both present and future, including plant and machinery.
ii) by way of Borrowers operating cash flows, book debts and all the receivables and revenue from project, all current assets, commission and any other
revenues of whatsoever nature.,

iii) by way of charge aver present and future Intangible assets.

iv) by the rights, title, interest, benefit, claims, of the company in respect of the project agreements executed / to be executed, applicable permits,
insurance policies both present and future, and all rights, title, interest, benefit, claims, demands of the company in respect of monies lying to the credit
of trust and retention account and other accounts.

v) by way of pledge of 100% equity shares of the company held by GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL)/ GMR Power and urban Infra Limited (GPUIL) Refer
Note No.1.2(i)], GMR Energy Limited (GEL) and GMR Highways Limited ( GHWL ) respectively.

vi) Corporate guarantee of GMR Holdings Pvt Ltd for the shortfall in amount payable in respect of the facility on account of concessionaire evi:nt of
default.

In terms of rupee term loan (RTL) agreement, the following amounts are due for payment to Banks as on balance sheet date*:
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Principal repayment of RTL from Banks ** Upto 1 day 1,090.44 . Upto 1 day 819.28
Interest accrued on RTL from Banks Upto 60 days 606.56 Upto 60 days 639.72

* - the Company confirms that it has not received any communication/notice from banks demanding repayment of the loan on account of non payment

of dues upto the date of si ning-of financial statement.

**- the dues for pavment% RTL s based on the revised repayment schedule received through various mode as explained i ove ment oned

note.

(b)  Non-cumulative non-convertible Preference shares:
Refer Note No.10(c) for further details.
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Rupees i1 Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 14,646.04 14, 646.04
Add: Issued during the year = £
Closing balance 14,646.04 14,646.04
Less: Equity component transferred to Other Equity 10,019.69 10,019.69
Financial liability portion of preference shares 4,626.35 4,626.35
Add: Notional Interest recognized up to date 10,019.69 9,893.98
Less: transferred to Instrument entirely equity in nature Refer note nos.11 and 10{c) (14,646.04) -
Liability portion of non convertible preference shares - 14,520.33

(c) Liability portion of loan from related parties:

Loans from group Company (unsecured) includes i) an Interest free unsecured loan of Rs.7,753.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.7,753.00 Lakhs) from GMR

Highways Limited. The same is subordinated to term loans availed and and shall be repayable after final settlement date of Ru

pee Term Loans as rier the

financial agreements entered into with Lenders. i) an Interest free unsecured loan of Rs.771.95 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.771.95 Lakhs) from GIR

Generation Assets Pvt Ltd. The same is subordinated to term loans availed and shall be repayable after final settlement date o
the financial agreements entered into with Lenders.

(d)  Loan from related parties:

fRupee Term Loans as per

i)The Company had availed loan of Rs. 530.00 Lakhs and Rs. 1,879.00 Lakhs from GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEL) hearing

interest at the rate of 8.50% and 9.00% p.a. respectively.

The Company had also availed loan of Rs.3,353.00 Lakhs and Rs.401.38 Lakhs from GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL) carrying interest at

the rate of 9.00% and 10.00% p.a. respectively.

As referred to note number 10(i) above, GTAEL and GTTEL were merged with GMR Highways Limited (GHWL) and the loans stands taken over by GHWL.
Since, GHWL is the sponsor / promoter and in terms of the facility agreement any loan from promoter cannot be repaid till all the borrowings from

ii) An Unsecured loan of Rs.266.53 Lakhs bearing interest rate of 10.00% pa from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited and shall be repayable on or

before December 29, 2023.
(e)  Deferred Payment of negative grant

In accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement entered into with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), dated November 16, 2005,
the company has an obligation to pay an amount of Rs.17,475.20 Lakhs by way of Negative Grant over the concession period. The total value of N¢gative
Grant has been recognized in the financials by way of capitalization in the cost of carriageway and a corresponding obligation has been created tewards
Deferred Payment. Balance negative grant of Rs.6,640.60 Lakhs were due in instalments (ie., Rs.1,747.50 Lakhs, Rs.1,747.50 Lakhs, Rs.2,621.30 Lakhs
and Rs.524.30 Lakhs were due in August 2013, August 2014, August 2015 and August 2016 respectively).NHAI had issued letters to the Escrow Banlcer for
releasing the amount of Negative Grant including interest and the Escrow Banker has released an amount of Rs.608.00 Lakhs on October 9, 2020 to
NHAI towards Negative Grant. The Company has paid negative grant amounting to Rs.3,569.75 in financial year 2022-23. For further details refer Note

30.

13 Lease Liabilities

Operating lease commitments - Company as a Lessee : The Company has entered into certain cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease
agreements mainly for office premises. The lease rentals paid during the year and the maximum obligation on the long term non-cancellable operating

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current lease liabilities 21.64 -
Current lease liabilities* 9.75 -
Total 31.39 -
* includes lease liability due but not paid as on balance sheet date of Rs.0.00 (March 31, 2022: Rs.0.00)
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities:
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 21122
Less than one year 12.76 iy

- 8§
One to five years ' 23.81 &7
More than five years %/ - S/
Total ' : 36.57 [=]

The Company does not'expect any liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities and these obligations would be met as and when they fal di]efﬁ'
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Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2.81 -
Interest on lease liabilities - 0.92 -
Total 3.73 -
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows:
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
_Repayment of lease liability 3.15 -
Total 3.15 -

The Company has paid a lease rental of Rs.15.39 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.14.47 Lakhs) against short - term leases and has accounted as Rent under

Other expenses refer note number 25,

14 Provisions

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Non-current:
Provision for Gratuity [Refer note no.38(b)]

4.52 8.49
Provision for Leave encashment 12.32 18.04
Provision for periodic major maintenance [Refer note nos. (a} & (b) below] - i62.11
Sub Total (A) 16.84 188.64
Current:
Provision for other employee benefits 11.78 11.49
Provision for Leave encashment 1.52 1.96
Provision for contingencies Refer note no. 30((iii) 2,101.47 1,377.25
Provision for periodic major maintenance [Refer note nos. (a) & (b) below] 1,674.57 1,142.58
Sub Total (B) 3,789.34 2,533.28
Total (A)+(B) 3,806.18 3,421.92
Note:

a) Provision for periodic major maintenance (overlay activities)

The Company has a contractual obligation to maintain, replace or restore infrastructure,
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at th
of which the overlay is estimated to be carried out. 15th year Major Overlay activities
initiated the Overlay work in certain stretches due to the instruction from NHAI which

been incurred during FY 2023-24 for the purposes of over lay provisions.
b) Movement of provision for periodic major maintenance

except for any enhancement element. Cost of such obligation is
e balance sheet date and recognised over the period at the end
is expected to be completed in FY 2023-24. The Company has
has been considered to be the part of MMR which shoul:| have

Rupees in l.akhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Opening Balance 862.11 1,142.58 1,379.50 -
Add : Accretion during the year 886.70 - 791.22 -
Add : Unwinding Interest on major maintenance provision 354.41 E 22477 -
Adj : Transferred from non-current to current (2,103.22) 2,103.22 (1,142.58) 1,142.58
Less : Utilised during the year - (1,571.23) (390.80) -
Closing Balance - 1,674.57 862.11 1,142.58
C) Provision for contingencies 2 - = -
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current Current
Opening Balance 1,377.25 518.71
Add: Provision made during the year 724.22 853.54
Less: Utilised/ reversed during the year - -
Closing Balance 2,101.47 1,377.25

"
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15 Trade payables

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current:
Carried at amortised cost:
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [Refer Note nos (a) to (d) below] 156.56 106.15
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises [Refer Note nos (b) & (c) below]
Payable to related parties [Refer note no.42] 265.24 154.49
Dues to others 278.82 141,69
Total 700.62 1,102.33
Notes:
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) Details of dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Dues to related parties [Refer note no.42] 43.37 108.97
Dues to others 113.19 197.18
Total 156.56 106.15

b) The fair value of Trade payables is not materially different from the carrying value presented.

¢) Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 days terms subject to fund avaiability thereof.

d) The Management is in continuous process of obtaining confirmations from its vendors regarding their registrations under the provisions of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). Under the MSMED Act, 2006 which came into force with effect from October 2,
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of information and records available
with the company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Further, in view of the

management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provision of the Act are not expected to be material. The
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act,

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 1022

a) i) The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting 156.56 306.15
year (net of amount written back)

a) i) The interest amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting -
year

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid ' -
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act, 2006)*

d) The amount of interest accrued but not accounted in the books and remaining unpaid at the end of 0.89 12.60
accounting year; and*
e) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the -

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23.

* In the absence of any demand towards the interest for delayed payment from MSMED vendors the interest disclosed above does not inclule the
interest accrued on the delayed payment where vendors have already been paid.
e) Trade payables ageing schedule

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Rupees ir. Lakhs
Outstading for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
_year
(i) MSME 105.48 51.08 - - - 1.56.56
(ii) Others 169.45 347.86 10.10 16.65 - 544.06

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others = & = =

For the year ended March 31, 2022 Rupees in Lakhs
Outstading for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Not Due
year

(i) MSME 131.87 144.64 29.64 = - 306.15
(i) Others 372.56 258.84 94.85 33.33 136.60 ,—-—--...3596.18 .
{iii) Disputed Dues - MSME ; L z 2 3 2 /(:(\'\gaf” Ly, \ -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others : -, - - - Vi \‘ﬁd‘:\'

RS




GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited

CIN

- U45203KA2005PTC036773

Notes to Financial Statements

16

17

Other financial liabilities

Rupees ir: Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Nen Current:
Interest accrued but not due on loan from related parties [Refer note no.42and 12(d) | 3,582.41 -
Sub Total (A) 3,582.41 -
Current:
Other Payable

-Related Party [Refer note no.42] 10,153.69 3,994.39

-Other 3.27 0.24
Interest accrued and due on term loans 606.56 $89.72
Interest accrued but not due on loan from related parties [Refer note no.42] 55.01 3,071.11
Sub Total (B) 10,818.53 7,1'55.46
Total (A)+(B) 14,400.94 7,1'55.46
Other current liabilities

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 1022
Current:
Advance received from Customers 38.83 Y772
Amount received from NHAI - £41.59
Statutory dues 58.64 72.62
Total 97.47 731.93

Note : - the Company is in the process of reconciling the outstanding balances with vendors and any changes in the balance upon reconciliation shall be
given effect in the ensuing year and the management is of the opinion that there will not be any significant effect on such reconciliation.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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18 Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and, March 31, 2022

18.01 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:

18.02

18.03

Rupees n Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Profit or loss section

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Tax expense / (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss

Other comprehensive income section (ocn

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCl during in the year:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans

Tax expense / (credit) to Other Comprehensive Income

Tax expense / (credit) to Total Comprehensive Income

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loss for the year before taxation (3,626.14) (8 833.34)
Applicable tax rate 26.00% 26.00%
Tax effect of income / (loss) (a) (942.80) (2,296.67)
Adjustments:
Tax effect on non-taxable income (166.81) (0.09)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 189.65 223.22
Tax effect on difference In carry forward losses 827.93 351.08
Tax expense / (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (b) 850.77 574.21

(c)=(a+b) (92.03) (1,722.46)
Deferred tax not is recognised on brought forward unused tax (d) 92.03 1,722.46
losses and allowances [Refer note no.18.04 (a) below]
Tax expense / (credit) to Total Comprehensive Income (e)=(c+d) - -
Effective tax rate (e)/PBT 0.00% 0.00%
Non-current tax assets / Provision for Income tax (net)

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance - Provision for Income tax / (Non-current tax assets) (18.72) (4.00)
Add: Current tax payable for the period/ year - -
Add: Interest on Income Tax refund (0.89) (0.25)
Less: Refund received/ (Current taxes paid) (Net) 14.82 (14.47)
Closing balance - Provision for Income tax / (Non-current tax assets) (4.79) (18.72)
Breakup 5 7
Provision for Income tax (net) 5 :
Non-current tax assets (4.79) (18.72)
Total (4.79) (18.72)

B
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18 Income Tax

18.04 Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilties for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

18.05

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars As at For the year ended As at For the year ended As zt
April 01, 2021 March 31,2022  March 31,2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax liability

Carriageways 5,189.78 288.69 5,478.47 (369.27) £,109.20
Right of use assets net off lease liability - - - 0.01 0.01
Borrowings 12.12 (4.02) 8.10 (3.52) 4,58
Equity Component of preference shares 2,605.12 - 2,605.12 - 2 605.12
Equity Component of loan from related parties 1,752.03 - 1,752.03 - 1752.03
Total ' (a) 9,559.05 284.67 9,843.72 (372.78) 9,470.94
Deferred tax asset

Property, plant and equipments and intangible 7.63 0.24 7.87 0.14 8.01
assets

Liability portion of preference shares 2,208.06 364.37 2,572.43 32.69 2,605.12
Loan from related parties 938.77 149.90 1,088.67 165.92 1,254.59
Provision for major maintenance 358.67 162.55 521.22 (85.83) 435.39
Provision for Leave Encashment 4.82 0.38 5.20 (1.60) 3.60
Provision for gratuity / (plan assets) 1.51 0.70 2.21 {1.03) 1.18
Provision for bonus 1.48 1.44 2.92 0.09 3.01
Principalisation of interest on rupee term loan 304.76 (6.49) 298.27 - 298.27
Unused tax losses 4,362.94 1,327.21 5,690.15 (390.94) 5.299.21
Unabsorbed tax depreciation 9,466.11 6.83 9,472.94 (0.19) 9.472.75
Total (b) 17,654.75 2,007.13 19,661.88 (280.75) 19,381.13
Net deferred tax (assets) / liability (c)=(a-b) (8,095.70) (1,722.46) (9,818.16) (92.03) (9,910.19)
Deferred tax asset is not recognised (d) 8,095.70 1,722.46 9,818.16 92.03 9,910.19

[Refer note (a) below]

Net deferred tax (assets) / liability (e)=(c+d) - - - -

Note:

a) The Company, being Infrastructure Company, enjoys the benefit of tax holiday period for 10 years out of first 20 years of operations. In initial years
of operations, the Company has incurred losses and hence had not claimed the benefit of tax holiday period. The Management expects that all
temporary differences as well as unused tax losses will be reversing in tax holiday period under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in view of

expected future profits and accordingly, the company has not recognised the resulting deferred tax asset/liability that is expected to reverse during
the tax holiday period.

The unused business loss and allowances is allowable in future period against taxable profit as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unused depreciation allowances available for 36,433.67 36,134.37

future taxable profit for unlimited period

Unused business loss available for future taxable profit upto:

Relating to Assessment vear  Available upto Assessment year

2015-16 2023-24 Lapsed 2,1492.07
2016-17 2024-25 442.02 142.02
2018-19 2026-27 2,934.99 2,934.99
2019-20 2027-28 3,617.67 3,617.67
2020-21 2028-29 1,683.60 1,683.60
2021-22 2029-30 4,232.16 4,146.71
2022-23 2030-31 5,803.52 6,:468.12
2023-24 2031-32 1,667.59 NA

18.06 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and

the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

B
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19 Revenue from operations

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Toll Income from Expressways 7,149.97 1,895.08
Total 7,149.97 ..,895.08

Disaggregate revenue information for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

The Company has presented disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers (under service concession arrangements) for the year ended March 31,

2023 and March 31, 2022 by offerings and is of the opinion that, this disaggregation best depicts the nature, amount, timing of revenues and cash flows
that are affected by the industry markets and other economic factors.

Rupees in Lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

Revenue by offering

Income from toll collection

The Company has not identified any disaggregated revenues based on contract types.

7,145.97 1,895.08

Performance obligations:

The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as at end of the reporting period and an exjlanation
as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. The Company during the year has applied the practical expedient given n Ind AS
115 for the disclosure of remaining performance obligations and based on its analysis of service concession arrangements outstanding as on Narch 31,
2023 has not identified any remaining performance obligations and accordingly there are no disclosures given in respect of service ccncession
arrangements, as the toll revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer arising out of toll road service.

20 Other income

Rupees i1 Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Interest Income
- on Bank Deposit

- 0.06
-on Income Tax Refund 0.89 0.25
Unwinding interest on security deposits 0.04 -
Excess provision/ liabilities written back 11.81 -
Other non-operating income 9.01 16.15
Total 21.75 16.46
21 Operating expenses
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sub-contracting expenses and Concession fee 1,500.02 1,655.37
Total 1,500.02 1,655.37

Details of sub-contracting and concession fee expenses

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, ;1022

Highway Maintenance Expenses

296.45 587.03

Concession fee [Rs.1, (March 31, 2022 : Rs.1/-)] - -
Toll/Highway Management Services 316.87 277.12
Major Maintenance expenses 886.70 791.22
Total 1,500.02 1,655.37

22 Employee benefit expenses

Rupees i Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 1022
Salaries, Perquisites & Allowance 132.23 182.31
Contribution to provident and other funds 9.78 10.18
Gratuity expense 3.05 2.65
Staff welfare expenses 6.29 3.96
Total ' 151.35 199.10
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24

Finance cost

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest measured at amortised cost
Interest on term loans from banks 2,652.24 2,894.92
Interest on loan from related parties [Refer note no.42] 1,220.85 1,159.26
Interest others 1,205.56 2,484.75
Other borrowing cost 48.08 61.92
Total 5,126.73 1,600.85
Details of finance cost (Interest measured at amortised cost)
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on debts and borrowings
Interest on term loans from banks 2,652.24 +,894.92
Interest on loan from related parties
Interest on loan from related parties [Refer note no.42] 582.72 582.72
Unwinding interest on loan from related parties [Refer note no.42] 638.13 576.54
Interest others
Unwinding interest on liability portion of preference shares [Refer note no.42] 125.71 1,401.43
Unwinding Interest on major maintenance provision 354.41 224.77
Interest on Lease liabilities 0.92 -
Interest on delay in payment of statutory dues 0.30 0.01
Interest on delay in payment of Negative Grant 724.22 858.54
Other borrowing cost
Bank and other finance charges 48.08 61.92
Total 5,126.73 6.600.85
Depreciation and amortization expense

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12.39 13.89
Amortization of right of use assets 2.81 -

Amortization of intangible assets 4,134.90 1,604.49
Total 4,150.10 1,618.38

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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26

27

Other expenses

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Consumption of Stores and Spares ! 15.35 22.45
Utility Expenses (including Electricity charges) 106.40 106.83
Rent 15.39 14.47
Logo fees 0.01 0.01
Rates and Taxes 1.92 0.80
Insurance 80.21 110.23
Repairs and maintenance 38.91 47.05
Vehicle running expense 15.55 16.58
Travelling and conveyance 22.91 16.94
Communication costs 3.54 3.30
Printing and stationery 1.07 0.68
Legal and professional fees 312.00 286.10
Manpower Outsourcing 26.30 24,33
Directors' sitting fees 1.89 1.83
Sundry Balances written off 55.00 -
Loss on sale of assets 0.57 -
Bank charges 1.40 1.48
Payment to auditors [Refer note no. (a) below] 11.80 10.74
Advertisement and business promotion 1.34 1.13
Books and Periodicals 0.03 0.02
Miscellaneous Expense 28.57 6.21
Total 740.16 671.18
Notes:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) Details of payment to auditors
Statutory audit fee 6.90 6.90
Tax audit fee 1.18 1.18
Certification charges 372 2.66
Total 11.80 10.74
Exceptional ltems Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Claim received from NHAI towards Force Majeure [Refer note no.33] 870.50 -
Total 870.50 -
Earning per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (Loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year. There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. Thus, diluted EPS

equals basic EPS.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 1022

a) Nominal value of Equity shares (in Rupees per share) 10.00 10.00
b) Weighted average number of Equity shares at the end of year (in Nos) 9,82,38,000 9,82,38,000
c) Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings (Rupees in Lakhs) (3,626.14) (8,333.34)
d) Basic/Diluted Earning per share of Rs 10/- each (inRs.) [(c)/(b)] {3.69) (8.99)

S
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28 Disclosures on Financial Instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instrum
contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for
are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liabili

28.01 Financial instruments by category

ents for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that

recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses
ty and equity instrument are disclosed in Notes to the financial statements.

28.02

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as follows Rupees in Lakhs

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Refer Amortised cost Fair value Fair value through Amortised cost Fair value Fair value
note through profit or ocl through profitor  through OCI
no. loss loss

Financial assets:

Receivable from NHAI 5 6.22 - - 42,62 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 2} 240.66 - - 124.52 - -

Other financial assets 5 46.37 - - 25.00 - -

Total 293.25 - - 192.14 - -

Financial liabilities:

Borrowings (including 12816 20,197.60 - - 23,888.88 - -

interest accrued)

Liability component of 12 % - - 14,520.33 - -

preference share capital

Loan from group companies 12 16,679.03 - - 15,474.59 - -

(including interest accrued)

Lease Liabilities 13 31.39 - - - - -

Trade payables 15 700.62 - - 1,202.33 - -

Negative grant payable 12 2,462.85 6,032.60 -

Other financial liabilities 16 10,156.96 - - 3,994.63 - -

Total 50,228.45 - - 65,113.36 - -

Fair value hierarchy
The Company held the following assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determiring and
disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or irdirectly
observable; and

Level 3; valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

a) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023:

Rupees i Lakhs

Particulars - Total Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3

Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss: E - - -
Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss: - - -

b) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 20212:

Rupees ir Lakhs

Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss: - - - -

Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss: - - - -

During the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 there were no transfers
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The Board of Directors considers the fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities to approximate their carrying valu
date.

between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no
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29 Financial risk management

Financial Risk Factors
The Company's principal financial liabilities, com
Company's operations. The Company's
bank balance.

prise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
principal financial assets is Receivable under Service concession agreement, Cash and Cash equivalents and other

In the course of its business, the Company's exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management ove sees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a audit committee that advises on financial risks and the ap aropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. The company's senior management ensure that the company's financial risk activities are jzoverned
by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company's policie: and risk
objectives. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk management frame work aimsto:

i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuation on the Company's business plans.

ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

29.01 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings, deposits, and derivative financial instruments. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position
as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations,
provisions.
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis.
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligatinns with
floating interest rates. Barrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.
The Company analysis its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. The Company's policy is to manage its interest cost using only inters:st free/
fixed rate debts from related parties.
Interest rate sensitivity:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of external loans and borrowings
affected. 50 basis points represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in interest rate. With all other variables held ¢ anstant,
the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact interest rate of borrowings is as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Type of currency Increase/ Effect on profit before tax Effect on total equity
decrease in basis March 31, 2023 March 31, March 31, 2023 March i1, 2022
points 2022
Increase of profit INR (+)50 65.50 89.54 65.50 89.54
Decrease of profit INR (-)50 (65.50) (89.54) (65.50) (89.54)

29.02 Commodity price risk
The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement for operating activities
which require continuous procurement of road operation and maintenance materials. Therefore, the Company monitors its purchases closely to
optimise the price.

29.03 Credit risk .
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period other than those under litigation, and management does not expect any losses fram non-
performance by these counterparties.

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by the Company'’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s

policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits
are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payment:.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units for a
specified time period.

The carrying values of the financial assets approximate its fair values. The above financial assets are not impaired as at the reporting date. Other |
financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at reporting date. The cash and cash equivalents are maintained with repute |
Company believes noimpairment i nécessary in respect of the above financial instruments.
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29.04 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as the
liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they bec

risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

y fall due. The Company’s approach to managing
ome due without incurring unacceptable losses or

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity,

funding as well as settlement management.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out at by the
Company in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management palicy involves projecting
cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratics against

internal and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt financing plans. The Company also issues preference shares to tf

company/ group companies from time to time to ensure a liquidity balance.

e parent

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations and borrowing from
group companies. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.

payable to borrowers, vendors and other parties.

For the purpose of Working capital, we have considered total curren

assets held for sale.

The following are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities,
basis which therefore differs from both carrying value and fair value. Floating rate i

t assets + Assets held for sale — total current liabilities — Liabilities ralated to

including the estimated interest payment on an undiscounted
nterest is estimated using the prevailing interest rate at the year

end.
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Financial Total amount Repayable on Due within1  Due between 1 Due after 5
liabilities payable demand year to 5 years years
carrying value
As at March 31, 2023
External Borrowings 19,591.04 19,608.66 1,090.44 5,032.20 13,486.02 -
Interest accrued on term loan 606.56 606.56 606.56 - - -
Preference shares - - - - = =
Loan from group companies 13,041.61 14,954.86 - 266.53 14,688.33 =
Interest accrued on loan from 3,637.42 3,637.42 - 55.01 3,582.41 -
related parties
Lease Liabilities 31.39 36.57 - 12.76 23.81 -
Trade payable 700.62 700.62 - 700.62 - -
Negative grant payable 2,462.85 2,462.85 2,462.85 - - -
Other financial liabilities 10,156.96 10,156.96 10,156.96 < - -
Total 50,228.45 52,164.50 14,316.81 6,067.12 31,780.57 -
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Financial Total amount Repayable on Duewithinl  Due between 1 Due after 5
liabilities payable demand year to 5 years ye:rs
carrying value
As at March 31, 2022
External Borrowings 23,199.16 23,230.32 809.28 3,830.42 18,590.62 -
Interest accrued on term loan 689.72 689.72 689.72 - - &
Preference shares 14,520.33 14,646.04 - 14,646.04 - -
Loan from group companies 12,403.48 14,954.86 5,762.00 667.91 8,524.95 -
Interest accrued on loan from 3,071.11 3,071.11 2,997.60 73.51 - -
related parties
Trade payable 1,202.33 1,202.33 - 1,202.33 - -
Negative grant payable 6,032.60 6,032.60 6,032.60 - - -
Other financial liabilities 3,994.63 3,994.63 3,994.63 - - -
Total 65,113.36 67,821.61 20,285.83 20,420.21 27,115.57 -
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29.05 Excessive risk concentration

29.06

The Company needs to assess the risks in relation to excessive risk concentration and the measures adopted by the Company to mitigate suich risks.

Concentrations arise when a number of counter,
have economic features that would cause their
other conditions. Concentrations indicate the rel

parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical egion, or
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
ative sensitivity of the company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of
a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the
company to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

Capital management

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for sharehalders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the
Company.

For the purpose of the Company'’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Preference Share, loan from related partis:s and all

other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company includes within net debt, borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total external debt divided by total capital plus total debt.

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31,2023 March 131, 2022
Debt - External borrowings Including interest accrued (a) 20,197.60 2%,888.88
Capital Components

Equity Share Capital 9,823.80 9,823.80

Other equity (35,365.59) (46.392.51)
Liability component of preference share capital - 14,520.33

Negative Grant 2,462.85 6,032.60

Loan from group companies Including interest accrued 16,679.03 15,474.59

Total Capital (b) (6,399.91) [541.19)
Capital and debt (a+b) 13,797.69 2:,347.69

Gearing ratio (%) (a)/(a+b) 146.38% 102.32%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets “inancial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the “inancial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-
bearing loans and borrowing in the current period which has been communicated by the lenders that were subsisting as on the balance sheet date.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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30 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Rupees ir Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A.

Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Penalty levied by NHAI for delay in first periodic major maintenance and damages for not 1,014.00 1,014.00
maintaining Railway over bridge [Refer note no. {i) below]

Concessional interest rate granted by the lenders of term loan against which company has 1,925.74 1,787.79
agreed to pay additional interest [Refer note no.{(ii) below]

Interest on Negative Grant [Refer note no.(iii) below] 6,032.39 6,032.39
Capital Commitments

Notes:

iv)

The Contingent Liabilities are on account of following issues:

. Penalty levied by NHAI for delay in periodic major maintenance Rs.843.00 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.843.00 Lakhs] and damages “or not

maintaining Railway over bridge at Derabassi of Rs.171.00 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.171.00 Lakhs]. The penalty and damages levied by NIHAI has
not been accepted by the Company and the Company has referred the issue for mediation with Independent Engineer as per the provision: of the
Concession Agreement which is yet to be concluded. The company does not foresee any outflow of resources in respect of the said litigation.

. In view of the concessional interest rate granted by the lenders of term loan, the company has agreed to pay an additional interest of 0.60%; paon

the outstanding term loan to banks from August 2010 onwards i.e. Rs.1,925.74 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.1,787.79 Lakhs] if the claims submitted
by the company against NHAI is awarded in its favour on conclusion of the legal proceedings as explained in detail under Note no.31.

In accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement entered into with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), dated November 16,
2005, the Company has an obligation to pay an amount of Rs.17,475.20 Lakhs by way of Negative Grant over the concession period. The total value
of Negative Grant has been recognized in the financials by way of capitalization in the cost of carriageway and a corresponding obligation has been
created towards Deferred Payment. During earlier years the Company has paid negative grant to NHAI in various instalments and balance nagative
grant of Rs.6,640.60 Lakhs was due in various instalments (ie., Rs.1,747.50 Lakhs, Rs.1,747.50 Lakhs, Rs.2,621.30 Lakhs and Rs.524.30 Lakk:s were
due in August 2013, August 2014, August 2015 and August 2016 respectively) but have not been remitted to NHAI as there was a stay on zzcount
of arbitration. The Arbitral Tribunal on August 26, 2020 while rejecting the company’s prayer for compensation for breach of State Support
Agreement & Concession Agreement by State Government of Haryana, State Government of Punjab and NHAI, vacated the stay granied on
payment of Negative Grant and NHAI consequently demanded the payment of negative grant including interest from the Company and the liscrow
Banker. The claim by NHAI for interest communicated to the Company and the Escrow Banker was Rs. 10,134 Lakhs calculated up Octol:er 31,
2020, though the interest as computed by the Company upto August 25, 2020 is Rs.6,032.39 Lakhs (@SBI PLR plus 2%) which is disclcsed as
contingent. Escrow Banker based on the demand from NHAL, has remitted Rs. 608.00 Lakhs as per the waterfall mechanism to NHAL. NHAI ha; been

demanding the payment of negative grant along with interest calculated at the rate SBI plus 2% and accordingly, the Company has paid an amount
of Rs. 3,569.75 Lakhs towards Negative Grant.

The Company on January 16, 2023 has withdrawn all the SLPs filed before Hon'ble Supreme Court for the Stay on Payment of Negative Gra 1t and
interest after its application under section 9 of the Act were dismissed by Single Ld. Judge in Delhi High Court and as well as by Divisional Bench of

Delhi High Court, in view of the Arbitral Award being set aside as detailed in Note No. 31 by the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated
September 26, 2022.

In terms of the communication to NHAI, the Company has been providing for delay in payment of interest on negative grant based on SBI PLR plus
2% interest rate w.e.f. August 25, 2020, the date of the arbitral award under prudence pursuant to the vacation of stay on payment of Negative
Grant vide Arbitral Award dated August 26, 2020. The same has been disclosed as provision for contingencies, refer Note No. 14. According y, the
Company has accounted for interest on negative grant as at March 31, 2023 amounting to Rs. 2,101.47 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : 1,377.25 LakhsL].
The Company has not accounted for interest estimated upto August 25, 2020 to the extent of Rs. 6,032.39 Lakhs, (Rs.10,134 Lakhs as per NHAI
upto October 31, 2020) for non-payment of Negative Grant in terms of Concession Agreement as the Management is of the opinion that ther is no
charge of interest in pursuance of stay given by the Arbitral Tribunal for period prior to August 26, 2020 and effect, if any, will be given on the upon
the matters attaining finality as the company is of the opinion that the company’s claim on NHAI for diversion of traffic and interest there on are
higher than the counter claim of interest payable on negative grant as the total claim has to be looked at net effect.

The Supreme Court (SC) had passed an order dated February 28, 2019 stating that for the purpose of contribution to be made under the Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1956 ('EPF Act'), the definition of basic wages includes all emoluments paid in cash 1o the
employees in accordance with the terms of their contract of employment. In view of the same, the Company is liable to make further contril:ution
towards Provident Fund ('PF') on the entire salary paid by it to its employees other than certain emoluments based on performance and variable.
However, there is no clarity on effective date from when the liability is required to be paid by the Company. As a matter of caution, the Company
has accounted and paid the PF liability in terms of the SC order on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order i.e., April 1, 2019 onwards. The
Company further will account and pay the differential PF liability if any, on receiving further clarity on the subject from the Provident Fund
Authorities and the impact if any which in view of the Company is not expected to be material.




GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Notes to Financial Statements

31 Litigation

The Company had invoked arbitration proceedings against National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), State of Haryana (SoH) and State of Punjab
(SoPb) as per the terms of the Concession Agreement dated November 16, 2005 and State Support Agreement dated February 21, 2006 & March 8,

The three member Hon’ble Tribunal vide its order dated August 26, 2020, has pronounced the award wherein majority of the Tribunal ha-s disagreed
with the contention of the Company and has rejected all the claims of the Company, Majority Award has also vacated the stay granted on recovery of
Negative Grant vide Tribunal’s interim order dated August 13, 2013.

Minority Arbitrator by way of minority award has agreed with most of the contention of the Company, upheld the claims of the Company and avrarded
the entire amount claimed and has directed State of Haryana and State of Punjab jointly to pay the claim covered under his award along with irterest
from 2008 till March 31, 2019. The dissenting opinion of the other Arbitrator also rejected the Company’s contention on the non-payment of Negative
Grant and has concluded that the Company shall be bound by the Concession Agreement in relation to payment of Negative Grant.

The Company aggrieved by rejection of all claims by majority members had preferred an appeal, in both Punjab and Haryana matters, under Section 34
& Section 9 of the Arbitration Act before Hon’ble Delhi High Court requesting to stay the Majority Award and grant stay on payment of Negative Grant.
The Hon’ble High Court vide its order dated September 26, 2022 has set aside the Arbitral Award dated August 26, 2020 appealed under section 4 and

has referred the entire dispute back to Arbitration for which the parties are at liberty to re-initiate Arbitration Proceedings as per the Contractual
covenants.

The Company has withdrawn all the SLPs filed before the Hon'ble Supreme Court against the dismissal of application by Division Bench under Sertion 9
seeking interim relief on recovery of Negative Grant till the time Section 34 petition is decided by Hon’ble Delhi Court, in view of the Arbitral Award
being set aside by the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated September 26, 2022.

In the meanwhile, NHAI and SoH has filed appeal under section 37 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 with the High Court against setting aside
of Arbitral award dated August 26, 2020. The argument from all the parties have concluded and is reserved for order. Further, the Company his also
filed an appeal under section 37 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 act with the High Court with a request to consider minority award as final
award as the majority award is set aside by the High Court and the matter is listed for hearing on May 18, 2023.

The management of the Company based on the legal opinion is of the view that the application filed by NHAI along with SoH is liable to be rejected and
quashed since NHAI's grounds is essentially seeking re-appreciation of merits and facts, which is impermissible in an appeal u/s 37.

Accordingly, the Management is of the opinion that the matter has not attained finality and the Company has good chances on re-initiation f the
arbitration proceedings and it expects to win the case and to receive the claims in due course. As per the internal assessment by the management and is
reasonable certain that the arbitral claims will flow in to the Company on matter attaining finality and is also of the view that there will be ne: cash
inflows even if outflow of the Negative Grant or interest thereon are considered and expects realisability of the Company's claims in the near futurs,

32 Impairment of assets

The Company, during the year, has reassessed its impairment assessment to arrive at asset's value in use from its expert valuer considering the
probability of winning the appeal in near future. In determining the asset’s value in use, the expert has estimated the future cash flows of the Cornpany
on discounted cash flows basis under various scenarios which is based on various assumptions made by the management which the expert has relied
upon to arrive at the range of values. In estimating the future cash flows, the Company has made key assumption of receipt of cash inflows for clairns for
loss due to diversion of traffic/compensation under arbitration award from the financial year 2025-26 and every year thereafter which is critically
dependent upon the company getting a favourable order from the Courts / Arbitral tribunal on re-initiation of proceedings based on the directicn’s of
the Hon’ble Delhi High Court Order dated September 26, 2022 and receipt of the award amount . The valuation expert based on these assumptions, had
determined value in use of the Company assets as at December 31, 2022 (i.e., valuation date) which is higher than the carrying value of asset:. The
management is confident of receipt of claims for loss due to diversion of traffic/compensation and accordingly is of the opinion that no adjugtms:nt to
the carrying value of Carriageway is considered necessary.

33 Impact of Farmers protest on the business operation of the company
The Company's right to receive the User fee for usage of the toll roads was effected due to the farmers protests from October 12, 2020 to Decembyer 14,
2021 wherein the farmers were not allowing for collection of the toll fees. The Company had submitted its claim of Rs.1,518.00 Lakhs for compensation
towards Operation and Maintenance expenses and interest on RTL incurred during October 12, 2020 to December 14, 2021 to NHAI . Pursuant to the
claims filed by the Company, NHAI vide its communication dated October 19, 2022 has approved the claim of Rs.870.50 Lakhs. Further, NHAI ha;; also

conveyed its approval for extension of concession period by 429 days equal to the period effected by Farmers agitation from the scheduled completion
of the Concession Agreement.

The Company had been discharging interest on debt at the rate ranging from 11.40% to 11.75%, whereas the NHAI had considered interest r:te of
8.50% while approving the claim resulting in difference of Rs. 428 |akhs. The Company has filed a communication objecting to the metho
the interest, The Independant engineer has agreed with the claim of the company and recommended the same to NHAI for releas
which is pending approval of NHAI. The Company is confident of receiving the amount of Rs. 428 lakhs as has been recommen
Engineer from NHAI in the ensuing year.

The Company, however, has recognised the approved claim amount of Rs. 870.50 Lakhs as an exceptional items during the year en

2
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34 The Company has been incurring continuous losses due to loss of toll revenue arising as a result of diversion of partial traffic on parallel roads developed
subsequent to bidding of the project and blocking of highway due to farmers protest during the year resulting in loss of Rs.3,619.12 Lakhs [Mzrch 31,
2022 : Rs.8,833.70 Lakhs) and the total liabilities of the company exceeds its total assets by Rs.25,541.79 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.36,568.71 Lakhs]
resulting in erosion of networth indicating that there is a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern and therefare, it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company had raised its contention on loss of revenue due to diversion by NHAI, SoH & SoPb by developing parallel highways resulting in loss of
traffic to the Company's toll road under arbitration proceedings. The matter was appealed before Hon’ble Delhi High Court after being finally
adjudicated by the Arbitral Tribunal against the Company with 2:1 majority award. The Company in the meanwhile has received favourable ordar from
Hon’ble Delhi High Court which has set aside the Arbitral Award upholding the Company'’s contentions. In view of the same, the Company experts that
claim of damages/compensation will be received by the Company upon the matter attaining finality.

The accounts, however have been prepared on a going concern basis in view of the assurance of the Holding Company to provide necessary financial
and other assistance for running its operations smoothly in the ensuing year and expected cash flows arising from claims/compensation from the
favourably adjudication of claim proceedings by the arbitral tribunal as fully described to in note number 31 and 30(iii)above.

35 The Management of the Company is of the opinion that no provision is required to be made in its books of account other than those already provided if

any, with respect to any material foreseeable losses under the applicable laws, accounting standards or long term contracts. The Company dces not
have any derivative contracts,

36 The Company has initiated the process of obtaining balance confirmations from third parties and has received certain confirmations in the cours? of its
process in respect of which reconciliations have been concluded. The Company is following up with the rest of the parties for confirming the ba ances.
The Management, however, is of the opinion that the balances outstanding as per books of accounts are good and does not expect any sigrificant
differences required to be accounted in the books of the company.

37 The Company is engaged primarily in the business of Construction, Operation & Maintenance of Highways. As per the requirements of Ind AS 108, "
Operating Segments", the principal revenue generating activities of the Company is from Construction, Operation & Maintenance of Highways which is
regularly reviewed by the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). Accordingly, the management is of the view the Company has a single
reportable segment and the requirements of reporting on operating segments and related disclosures as envisaged in Indian Accounting Standarc 108 is
not applicable to the present activities of the Company.

38 Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plans :

The Company's Contribution to Provident, Pension Fund, Superannuation Fund and employee state insurance charged to Statement of Profit and Loss
are as follows :

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (LWF) 6.43 6.96
Contribution to Employee State Insurance 0.42 0.25
Contribution to Superannuation fund 2.93 297
Total 9.78 :10.18

b) The disclosures required as per the revised Ind AS 19 are as under:

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at Marzh 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

i. Change in defined benefit obligation
Defined benefit at the beginning 16.86 15.30
Current Service Cost 2.19 2.25
Interest expenses 1.20 0.98
Acquisition Cost/(Credit) (7.13) -
Remeasurements - Actuarial loss / (gain) 0.39 0.30
Benefits paid - .1.97)
Defined benefit at the end 13.51 16.86

ii. Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning 8.37 9.49
Interest income on plan assets 0.34 0.58
Acquisition Adjustment (7.13) -
Actuarial gains/ (losses) 7.41 10.06)
Contributions by employer - 0.33
Benefits paid - 11.97)
Fair value of plan assets at the end : 8.99 8.37

iil.

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present Value of Obligation as at yearend '~ 16.86
Fair Value of plan assets at year end %/'-' 18.37)
Net (asset) / liability recognised [ a 8.49
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38 Employee Benefits

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

iv.

Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses.
Current Service Cost

Past service cost - plan amendments
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 0.86

2.19 2.25

0.40
Total expense 3.05 2.65
V. Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year

Remeasurement of actuarial gains/(losses) arising from

- changes in experience adjustments 0.58 0.30

- changes in financial assumption (0.19) -

- changes in demographic assumptions g - -

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during the year 0.39 0.30

- return on plan assets excluding interest income (7.41) 0.06
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss recognized in other comprehensive income (7.02) 0.36

vi. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.79 1.03
1-2 year 2.67 117
2-3 year 0.95 2.94
3-4 year 1.14 137
4-5 year 1.29 1.57
5-10 year 14.53 16.12
vii. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:

Increase / decrease on present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end
(i) one percentage point increase in discount rate (0.86) (1.24)
(i) one percentage point decrease in discount rate 0.98 1.41
(iii) one percentage point increase in salary escalation rate 0.98 141
(iv) one percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate (0.87) (1.26)
(v) one percentage point increase in employee turnover rate 0.06 0.08
(vi) one percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate (0.07) (0.09)

viii.

Sensitivity Analysis Method

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined henefit
obligation by percentage, keeping all the other actuarial assumptions constant.

Risk Faced by Company:

The Gratuity scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death,
disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The
Plan design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined
benefit obligation will tend to increase

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, dizability

and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of

salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirament -
benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Investment with Insurer managed funds - conventional products 100% 100%

The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards gratuity to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). As of March 31, 20:3 and
March 31, 2022, the plan assets have been invested in insurer managed funds.

. The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 ire set
out below:
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.30% 7.10%
Rate of return on planned asset 4.06% 6.11%
Salary escalation rate 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality Table Q‘a/’ Indian Assured Indian Assured Lives Moriality
: Lives Mortality (2006-08)

(2006-08)
(modified) ULT




GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Notes to Financial Statements

38 Employee Benefits
The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The Company expects to contribute Rs.NIL to the gratuity fund during FY 2023-24.
The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors such as the composition of the plan assets held, zssessed
risks of asset management, historical results of the return on plan assets and the Group’s policy for plan asset management. Assumed rate of
return on assets is expected to vary from year to year reflecting the returns on matching Government bonds.

€) Leave Encashment

Liability towards Leave Encashment based on Actuarial valuation amounts to Rs. 13.84 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023 [March 31, 2022: Rs. 20.00
Lakhs].
39 NHAI has imposed certain restrictions on the usage of funds relating to escrow account under the waterfall mechanism of concession agreement to
ensure the same is used only for the operation & maintenance duly approved by NHAI. The management is of the opinion that the said restrictisns are
in the regular course of operations and does not foresee any implications on the operations of the company.

40 The Company has filed its application before Consortium of Lenders for resolution plan under the Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) scheme of the
Reserve Bank of India and currently the resolution plan is under review from the consortium. The impact of implementation of the plan will biz

given
effect upon approval of the resolution plan by the Consortium

41 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidentia’ assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has nat been

notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes
effective.

42 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

a} Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Relationship Name of the related parties
Holding Company GMR Highways Limited (GHWL)
Enterprises having control over the Company GMR Enterprises Private Limited [GEPL],
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL) w.e.f. December 31, 2021*
GMR Airport Infrastructure Limited [GAIL] upto December 31, 2021*
Fellow Subsidiary GMR Energy Ltd (GEL)
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Private Limited (GPEL)
GMR Airport Infrastructure Limited [GAIL] w.e.f. December 31, 2021*
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEL)***
Gmr Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL)
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL)*** .
GMR Generation Assets Limited (GGAL) [formerly GMR Renewable Energy Limited (GREL)]
Raxa Security Services Limited (RSSL)
Key Management Personnel Mr. O Bangaru Raju, Non-executive Director
Mr Arun Kumar Sharma, Non-executive Director
Mr. B.L. Gupta, Independent Director
Mr Mani Santosh Bommidala, Director
Dr. Kavitha Gudapati. Independent Director
Chief Financial Officer Mr. Mudit Saxena
Company Secretary Ms. Ritika Ahwal (Upto February 02, 2022)
Mr. Kashish (W.e.f. April 28, 2022 to April 20, 2023)
Ms. Divya Kalra (W.e.f. April 27, 2023)

Manager Mr. Igbal Singh
b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows ** ; Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Relationship March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Items relating to statement of profit and loss

a.  Unwinding interest on loan from related parties
GHWL Holding Company 580.34 5:4.33
GGAL Fellow Subsidiary 57.79 5221

b. Interest on loan from related parties
GHWL*** Holding Company 556.07
GPEL Fellow Subsidiary 26.65
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42 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows ** :

Rupees n Lakhs

Particulars Relationship March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
¢ Unwinding interest on liability portion of preference shares

GAIL* Fellow Subsidiary / Enterprises having control - 4,70

over the Company

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company 0.57 1.62

GHWL Holding Company 0.69 7.65

GHWL*** Holding Company 124.45 1,387.46
d.  Corporate common cost sharing expenses

GAIL* Fellow Subsidiary / Enterprises having control - 2.21

over the Company

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company 26.80 3.77
e.  Tollway and highways maintenance charges

GHWL Holding Company 48.93 47.04
f.  Charges for Periodic and regular Maintenance of Highways

GHWL Holding Company 227.18 1.56.31
8 Charges for Security & Toll management services

RSSL Fellow Subsidiary 235.25 120.14
h.  Logo fees

GEPL Enterprises having control over the Company 0.01 0.01
i.  Unwinding Interest on major maintenance provision

GHWL Holding Company 354.41 224.77
- Major Maintenance Expenses (Actual expenses incurred)

GHWL Holding Company 1,571.23 219.46
k.  Sale of scrap

GHVEPL Fellow Subsidiary - 14,95
I Sitting fees (excluding taxes):

Mr. B.L. Gupta Independent Director 1.53 1.48

Dr. Kavitha Gudapati Independent Director 0.36 0.35
m. Remuneration paid to

Mr. Igbal Singh Manager 23.77 30.47
Items related to balance sheet
n.  Equity shares outstanding

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Com pany 2,327.27 2,317.27

GHWL Holding Company 5,074.27 5,074.27

GEL Fellow Subsidiary 2,422.26 2,422.26
0. Equity component of preference shares

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company 46.66 46.66

GHWL Holding Company 56.56 '6.56

GHWL*** Holding Company 9,916.47 9,916.47
p.  Liability portion of preference shares

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company = (5.43

GHWL Holding Company - 79.31

GHWL*#** Holding Company - 14,375.59
Q. Instruments Classified as Equity- 8% Non-Cumulative Com pulsorily Convertible Preference

GHWL Holding Company 80.00 "

GHWL*** Holding Company 14,500.04 -

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Com pany 66.00 =
r.  Equity component of loan taken _

GHWL &r”'—— Holding Company 6,062.02 6,0€2.02

GGAL

s.  Liability portion of loan taken -
GGAL
GHWL

~ Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary
Holding Company

676.57

598.70
6,013.00

675.57

541.91
5,432.66
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42 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

b) Details of the transactions with related parties are

as follows ** ;

Rupees n Lakhs

Particulars

Relationship March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
t.  Current loan taken from related parties
GPEL Fellow Subsidiary
Opening Balance 266.53 266.53
Add : Received during the Year S -
Less : Repaid during the Year - -
Closing Balance 266.53 266.53
GHWL*** Holding Company
Opening Balance 6,163.38 6,163.38
Add : Received during the Year = =
Less : Repaid during the Year - -
Closing Balance 6,163.38 6,:163.38
u. Interest payable on Loan taken
GHWL**# Holding Company 3,582.41 3,040.62
GPEL Fellow Subsidiary 55.01 30.49
v. Trade Payables
GAIL* Fellow Subsidiary / Enterprises having control 183.79 1.83.79
over the Company
GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company 27.96 5.36
GEPL Enterprises having control over the Company 0.01 0.01
GHWL Holding Company 53.48 £65.33
RSSL Fellow Subsidiary 43.37 .08.97
w. Other Payable
GHWL Holding Company 10,153.69 3,994.39
X.  Provision for major maintenance
GHWL Holding Company 1,674.57 2,004.69

* [Refer Note No.1.2(j)]

** Reimbursement of expenses are not considered in the above statement.

*** [Refer Note No.10(i)]
Notes:

i.  Related Party Transactions given above are as identified by the Management.

ii.  Commitments with related parties: As at year ended March 31, 2023, th

iii. Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transaction from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions as approved by the Audit

ere is no commitment outstanding with any of the related parties.

received for any related party receivables or payables as per the management. For the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022,

the Company owes amount to related parties which is payable in terms of the agreements and balance confirmations.

iv. For terms and conditions related to Preference Share please refer Note no.12

¢. Compensation of key management personnel of the company

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a. Short-term employee benefits 21.87 +8.33
b. Post-employment benefits (provident fund and superannuation fund) 1.0 2.14
¢. Termination benefits
d. Any other payment/benefit given to KMPs 1.89 1.83

Total 25.66 12.30

d. Transaction with Key Management Personnel Rupees in |.akhs

Particulars Remuneration Outstanding loans/ advarices

Short-term Post Other long-term Sitting Fee Others receivables
employee employment employee Termination
benefits benefits benefits benefits

Mr. Bajrang Lal - =

Gupta - % 3

Dr. Kavitha Gudapati - - 5

Mr. lgbal Singh 21.87 1.90 .

(28337 " (214)

Previous year figures are in brackets

Note: Key Managerial Personnel are entitled ‘to post-employment benefits
‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits

same is not included above.
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43 Other Statutory Information

i.  There are no balance outstanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or

Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

ii. ~The Company does not have any Capital work in progress or intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceded its

cost compared to its original plan.

iii. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitiy(ies),
understanding that intermediary shall;

including foreign entity (intermediaries) with the

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guarantee /security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iv. The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entity (Funding Party) wih the understanding

{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fundin z Party

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee /security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v. The Company does not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961,

vi. The Company has neither transacted in Crypto or Virtual Currency during the year nor held any Crypto or Virtual Currency as at the Balanc: Sheet

date.

vii. The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami

property
viii. The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution of other lender.

44 Ratio Analysis

S| Ratios

Numerator Denominator March 31, March 31, Variance Remarks
2023 2022
a) Current Ratio Total current assets Total current 0.02 0.01 -87.21% Reduction in current lialiilities,
{in times) liabilities current borrowings cons dered
as non-current and variation in
terms of Preference Shares.
b) Debt-Equity Total Debt including interest  Total Equity (1.54) (1.64) 5.92% Not Applicable
Ratio (In times) accured
c) Debt Service Earning before tax + Debt 0.37 (0.71) 151.81% The resumption of toll collaction
Coverage Ratio  depreciation and amortisation redemptions + after conclusion of farmers
(In times) expenses+ interest on debt + Payment of protect  has  resulted in
interest on negative Interest on debt improvement of EBITDA and
grant+Exceptional ltem+ + Payment of repayment to borrower; and
Interest on lease liability Negative Grant+ lessor.
Lease Liabilities
d) Returnon Net Profit after Tax Average Net- 11.68% 27.47% 57.50% The resumption of toll colliction
Equity Ratio (In (Attributable to Owners) worth after conclusion of fz mers
%) protect has  resulted in
improvement of EBITDA ard and
variation in terms of preference
shares.
'e} Inventory Revenue from operations Average 104,12 27.25 -282.15% The resumption of toll collction
turnover ratio Inventories after conclusion of farmers
(In times) protect.
f) Trade Revenue from operations  Average of Trade - - 0.00% NA
Receivables Receivables
turnover ratio
(In times)
g) Trade payables Operating expenses, Employee Average Trade 2.87 1.64 -74.94% Due to payment made to
turnover ratio benefits expense, Other payable vendors.

(In times) expenses (net of provisions
movement excluding provision

for contingencies)
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44 Ratio Analysis

4

w

S| Ratios Numerator Denominator March 31, March 31, Variance Flemarks
2023 2022
h)  Net capital Total Income Working Capital (0.30) (0.04) -583.38% Reduction in current linbilities,
turnover ratio {current assets

current borrowings corsidered
as non-current and variation in
liabilities) terms of Preference Shares and
The resumption of toll ccllection
after conclusion of farmers
protect  has  resulted in

improvemet in revenue.
i) Net profit ratio Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax  Total Income (50.56%) (462.11%) 89.06% The resumption of toll collection
{In %)

(In times) minus current

after conclusion of ‘armers
protect and claims receivied from

NHAL
j)  Returnon Earning before tax and Interest Tangible net 10.85% (9.56%) 213.48% The resumption of toll collection
Capital expenses worth + Total after conclusion of farmers
employed (In Debt protect and claims received from
%) NHAL.
Further denomitor ha; also
imropved due to conversion of
redeemable preference shares
to CCPS due to change ir terms
and repayment of borrowings.
k) Returnon Interest income from Banks  Investment in 0.00% 7.95% 100.00% No other income earned during
investment (In bank deposits the vyear as fund was not
%)

invested in anywhere.

Salient aspects of Service Concession Arrangement

NHAI has granted the exclusive right and authority for Improvement, Operation and Maintenance including strengthening and widening of existing 2-
lane road to 4-lane dual carriageway from 1) KM 5-735 - KM 39+960 of NH-22 and 11) KM 0+000 - KM 0+871 of NH-21 (Ambala-Chandigarh Section] in the
states of Haryana and Punjab on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) Basis.

NHAI has further granted the exclusive right and authority during the concession period in accordance with terms and condition of the agreement to:

- develop, design, engineer, finance, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project Highway during the Concession Period.

- manage, operate & maintain the Project Highway and regulate the use thereof by third parties during the Operation Period.

- levy, demand, collect and appropriate the Fees from vehicles and persons liable to payment of Fees for using the Project Highway or ary part

thereof and refuse entry of any vehicle to the Project Highway if the due is not paid.

Concession period : The Concession period is 20 year commencing from the appointed date i.e. May 2006
Fees
The Concession Agreement had determined the base fee rate (in Rupees per kms) with base year as 1997 as given in Schedule G to the Concassion
Agreement, Toll Rates revised every year on 1st September based on annual average WP published by the office of Economic Advisor, Ministry of
Commerce & Industry, Government of India for the financial year ending 31st March preceding the date of revision. 3

The actual fees to be charged to the users shall be computed by the Concessionaire and sent to the Authority for validation as soon as possibl: after
31st March in every year, but at least forty five days before the rate increase is to be effective, Authority shall provide any comments or request
clarifications as soon as possible upon receipt of fee revision proposal but not later than fifteen days of receipt of the fee revision proposal. If the
Authority does not offer comments or seek clarification during this period the revised fee, as proposed by the Concessionaire, shall be deemec to be
confirmed by the Authority.

Concession Fee

In consideration of the grant of Concession under this Agreement, the Concession fee payable by the Company to the NHAI is Rs. 1 per year during the
terms of the concession agreement.

Negative Grant

For grant of concession, Concessionaire has agreed to pay an amount of Rs. 174.752 Crore (as set out in bid of the bidder and accepted by NHAI) as per
the details tabulated in Article 23 of the Concession Agreement.

Operation and Maintenance

The Company shall operate and maintain the Project Highway by itself or through O&M Contractor and i required, modify, repair or otherwise make
improvement to the Project Highway to comply with Specifications and Standards, and other requirements set forth in this Agreement, Good Inclustry
Practice, Applicable laws and Applicable Permits and manufacturer's guidelines and instructions with respect to toll systems and more specifically:

i) permitting safe, smaoth and uninterrupted flow of traffic during normal operating conditions.
ii) charging, collecting and retaining the Fees in accordance with the concession agreement

P
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45 Salient aspects of Service Concession Arrangement
iii) minimizing disruption to traffic in the event of accidents or other incidents affecting the safety and use of the Project Highway by providinz a rapid
and effective response and maintaining liaison procedures with emergency services.
iv) undertaking routine maintenance including prompt repairs of potholes, cracks, Concrete joints, drains, line marking, lighting and signage.

v) undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures, repairs and refurbishment of tolling system and hardware
and other equipment.

vi) carrying out periodic preventive maintenance to Project Highway including tolling system
vii) preventing with the assistance of concerned law enforcement agencies unauthorised entry to and exit from the Project Highway.

viii) preventing with the assistance of the concerned law enforcement agencies encroachments on the Project Highway including site and presirve the
right of way of the Project Highway

ix) maintaining a public relations unit to interface with and attend to suggestions from users of the Project Highway, the media, Government Agencies,
and other external agencies.

x) adherence to the safety standards
Monitoring and Supervision during Operation

The Company is required to undertake periodic inspection of the Project Highway to determine the condition of the Project Highway including its
compliance or otherwise with the Maintenance Manual, the Maintenance Programme, Specifications and Standards and the maintenance required and
shall submit report of such inspection ("Maintenance Report") to NHAI and the Independent Consultant.

Additional Tollway
Any of NHAI, Government of India, Government of Haryana or Government of Punjab shall not construct and operate either itself or have th: same,
inter alia, built and operated on BOT basis or otherwise any Expressway or other toll road between, inter alia, Ambala-Chandigarh Section from i) Km

5+735 - Km 39+960 of NH-22 and ii) Km 0+000 - Km 0+871 of NH-21 (the " Additional Tollway") in a manner that such Additional Tollway get opzned to
traffic before expiry of 8 (eight) years from the Appointed Date.

46 The previous year figures are not comparable with that of current year due to suspension in toll collections w.e.f., October 12, 2020 to December 14,
2021 on account of Farmers Protest against the Farm Law passed by Government of India (Refer Note No. 33) above.

47 Figures of the previous year wherever necessary, have been regrouped and rearranged to conform with those of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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